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Bid for an "equal" product should be rejected 
as nonresponsive if it fails to comply with a 
particular design characteristic of the brand 
name product ident.ified in a solicitation. 
Where a solicitation includes precise per- 
formance or design characteristics, the 
"equal" product must meet them exactly. 

Analytics Communications Systems, Inc. protests the 
award of a contract to TEQCOM, Inc. under invitation for 
bids (IFB) No. EMV-85-B-0032, issued August 29, 1985, by the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency ( F E Y . 9 ) .  We initially 
dismissed Analytics' protest because we did not receive the 
protester's comments, responding to the contracting agency 
report, within 7 working days after we received the report. 
By decision of January 6 ,  1986,  we reinstated the protest 
for consideration on the merits. - See Dresser Industries, 
Inc. et al., B-218535.3 -- et al., Jan. 6, 1986, 86-1 CPD *! 10. 

We now sustain the protest. 

The I F B  called €or a telecommunications syc,tern to 
connect FEAA with the Defense Depart.-nent's Automatic Digital 
YetW9rS (AUTODIN). Line items 2 1 - 3 Q ,  3t issue here ,  called 
for two electronic control inodules identified as "Analytics 
Comrn. [Communications] Systems Model WO. TLC [ telecommunica- 
tions line processor]-100 E/W 6045(T) Control and Dual 
Processor (Tempest Tested) .'I The equipment was required to 
interface with existing FEMA equipment, including word pro- 
cessors, optical charactsr readers, printers, sorters, and 
tape reader punchers. KO salient Characteristics were 
listed. T h e  solicitation s t a t e d  that b i d s  would be accepted 
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on a brand name or equal basis, and it included the standard 
clauses set forth in the Federal Acquisition Regulation 
(FAR), 48 C.P.R. S 52.214-21 (1984), concerninq descriptive 
literature. These required descriptive literature to be 
submitted with the bids and stated that failure of the 
descriptive literature to show that the product offered 
conformed to solicitation requirements would result in 
rejection of the bid as nonresponsive. 

FEMA received only two bids for the line items in 
question. TEQCOY offered its YAQS 1825-4T control module 
and associated items (spare parts kits, additional soare 
parts, and testing, enqineering, and traininq support) for a 
total price of S23,000, while Analytics offered the brand 
name equipment and the other items for $63,008. On the same 
day as bid opening, September 39, 1985, the contractinq 
officer awarded the contract to TSOCOY after concluding that 
its equipment was "equal" to that of Analytics. 

Analytics protests that TEQCOY's descriptive literature 
does not demonstrate that T'ZQCOY's equipment is equal to the 
brand name equipment with reqard to certain features, 
includins a dual processorl/, and that FEYA improperly 
permitted TEQCOM to Take iFs nonresDonsive bid responsive 
after ooening. The protester also alleqes that TSOC9M's bid 
w a s  nonresponsive in that it failed to orir:e two line items 
separately. In addition, the Drotester alleqes that FEYA 
improperly waived tho mandatory IFR requirement for preaward 
testinq of other-than-equal equipwnt for compatibility. 

T ? 4 A  rssponds that its project oEficer reviewe? 
?'SOC,9);cl's descrintive literature and found it s,3tisfactory, 
and that questions that it asked  T?qCr)M after bid oponinq di.d 
not affeqt the responsiveness of t h e  hid. !??M4 further 
states that ~ 7 q C r ) ; Y  d i d  got m i t  orices for the two line 
iteTs, which covered additional spare parts, but  r a t h e r  
include? orices for these parts in the line it2n prices 
covorinq spare oarts kits. Vothinq in the IPS, "SY9 .;%ates, 
orohihits pricinq in this manner. Finall-y, %MA states, it 
tested compatibilitv by telephoninq five fe?eral acrencies 
listed in TEOCOM's b i d ,  rather than by visiting the firfl's 
offices. 

- 
l /  Accordinq to the protester, in the context of this 
system, a dual processor will orovide redundancy and/or 
nartial. operation of the equipTent in case of failure of one 
processor. 
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We agree with Analytics that FEMA should have rejected 
TEQCOY'S bid as nonresponsive. 
did not contain a list of "salient characteristics" 
explicitly desiqnated as such, it did identify the brand 
name control module as having a dual processor. When a 
solicitation sets forth particular features of a brand name 
item, these are presumed to be material and essential to the 
government's needs. Western Graphtec, Inc., B-216945 et - al., Apr. '2, 1985, 55-1 CPD (1 381. Further, when an agency 
expresses its material requirements in terms of very precise 
performance or design characteristics, any "equal" product 
must meet those characteristics exactly. 

85-2 CPD (1 373; Cohu, Inc., B-199551, Mar. 18, 1981, 81-1 
CPD 11 207. A contracting aqency does not have discretion to 
waive compliance with a precise design characteristic, 
because such a waiver could prejudice other bidders or 
prospective bidders who assumed that the requirement would 
be enforced. C . Y .  & W.O. Sheppard, 5-219376, Sept. 24, 
1985, 85-2 CPD (I 3 2 9 ;  Scanray CorD., B-215275, Sept. 17, 

Althouqh the solicitation 

- See American 
I Sterilizer Co., 8-219021, Sept. 20, 1995, 64 Comp. Gen. - 

1984, 54-2 CPD q[ 299. 

Moreover, in a sealed bid nrocurenent, to be responsive 
to a brand name or equal solicitation, a bid offerinq an 
equal product must contain sufficient descriptive literature 
to permit the contracting activity to assess whether the 
product offered possesses each precise performance or design 
characteristic specified. G . A .  Rraun, Inc., R-215645, 
Teb. 21, 1985, 85-1 CPD qf 3.18. The responsiveness of an 
equal bid depends on the coapleteness of the information 
submitted or riasonably available. - I d . ;  Frontier Eilfq. Co., 
3-215288, UOV. 14, 1934, 84-2 CPD *f 529. 

:-lere, F E Y A ' s  purchase description reEers to a dual 
Drocessor. This Eeature appears therefore to be material. 
Voreover, while Analytics' descriptive literature indicates 
that it nanufactures the control m9dule in both a s i n q l e  and 
dual processor version, it offered the Latter here .  TROC9Y 
ofEered a purportedly c3qual control module identified as a 
?lAc)S-4T, Yodel 1825-4T.  The descriptive literature TYQC9Y 
subqitted with its b i d  states that the module is "built 
around the popular 8 0 8 5  aicroprocessor .'I Ve have reviewe-3 
the Lit?rature, and nowhere in it is there a reference to a 
dual ,processor. F W A  neither rebuts the protester's 
alleqation that TeOCOV d i d  not offer the dual processor 
feature nor oEfers any explanation as to how it miqht have 
determined that TFQCOM was offerinq it. On this rscord, we 
must conclude that T E ~ C ~ Y ' S  b i d  and accompanying descriptive 
literature fall short of estitblishinq the equality of its 
product with that of Analytics. 



I 

8-220615.3  4 

lqe therefore sustain hnalytics' protest with regard to 
the dual processor. In view of this conclusion, we need not 
consider Analyticsl other bases of protest. Where one rea- 
son for rejectinq a bid is proper, it is not necessary for 
us to address any other basis on which a bid mav he 
nonresponsive. Frontier Mfq. Co.,  supra. 

during the pendency of this protest, as required by the 
Competition in Contractinq Act of 1 9 8 4  (CZCA), 3 1  U.S.C.A.  
§ 3 5 5 3 ( d )  (West Supp. 1 9 8 5 ) .  In view of the agency's 
assertions that the TEQCOM equipment is fully satisfactory, 
by letter of today to the Director of FEYA we are 
recommendinq that FEMA reassess its minimum needs in light 
of CICA's requirement for agencies to use soecifications 
that represent the least restrictive alternative that meets 
their needs. 4 1  U.S.C.4. ($ 253a(a)(2)(3) (West Supp. 
1 9 8 5 ) .  If FEMA determines that an electronic control module 
with a single processor could satisfy its minimum needs, 
FZMA should terminate TSQCOM's contract for the convenience 
of the government an? resolicit, keeping i n  nind the FAR 
provision that directs agencies not to write ourchase 
descriptions so as to specify a particular product, or a 
Eeature of a product peculiar to one manufacturer, unless it 
is essential. PAR, 4 9  C.P.R. 5 lO.Q04(b)(?). If a brand 
name module is deerTled essential, F T V A  s h o u l d  list the 
salient characteristics of the i%em that ,?ire naterial and 
essential to its needs. 

FEMA suspended performance of the contract by TEOCOM 

If, \owever,  FEVA determines %hat rt in fact requires 
an electronic control module that i n c l u - l e s  a :lilal nrocessor, 
t h e n  W Y l  should terminate TYQCQV's contract a n d  make award 
to the lowest responsive bidder inder the oriqin%l 
solicit3%ion, i . e . ,  Analytirs, a s s ~ n l i n q  that t h e  F i r q  i ;  
responsi3le 2nd  i t s  or IC? reasonable. 

We sustain t h e  protest. 

Acting Comptroller Senera1 
of the ilnite? States 




